Minutes of a meeting of the Healthy Safe Clean & Green Communities Scrutiny Committee of the Bolsover District Council held in the Virtual Meeting and Council Chamber, The Arc, Clowne if required on Tuesday, 6 October 2020 at 10:00 hours.

PRESENT:-

Members:-

Councillor David Downes in the Chair

Councillors Anne Clarke (Vice-Chair), Rose Bowler, Natalie Hoy, Tom Munro, Evonne Parkin and Peter Roberts.

Officers:- Victoria Dawson (Head of Housing Management and Enforcement), Wayne Carter (Leisure Operations Manager), Matt Finn (Environmental Health Manager)(from Minute No HEA15-20/21), Joanne Wilson (Scrutiny & Elections Officer and Alison Bluff (Governance Officer).

HEA9-20/21 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

An apology for absence was received on behalf of Councillor Janet Tait.

HEA10-20/21 URGENT ITEMS OF BUSINESS

There were no urgent items of business to consider.

HEA11-20/21 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest.

HEA12-20/21 MINUTES - 8TH SEPTEMBER 2020

Moved by Councillor David Downes and seconded by Councillor Rose Bowler **RESOLVED** that the Minutes of a Healthy, Safe, Clean and Green Communities Scrutiny Committee held on 8th September 2020 be approved as a correct record.

HEA13-20/21 LIST OF KEY DECISIONS AND ITEMS TO BE CONSIDERED IN PRIVATE DOCUMENT

Committee considered the List of Key Decisions and Items to be considered in private document.

Moved by Councillor Tom Munro and seconded by Councillor Natalie Hoy

RESOLVED that the List of Key Decisions and items to be considered in private document be noted.

HEA14-20/21 IMPACT OF COVID-19 ON LEISURE SERVICES.

Committee considered a report presented as a slide presentation by the Leisure Operations Manager in relation to the impact of Covid19 on Leisure Services.

From 23rd March 2020, the majority of leisure services staff were instructed to remain at home due to the enforced lockdown restrictions. Some Leisure staff were able to work from home but staff such as coaches and lifeguards were not.

A Community Support Team was established via the Partnerships Team and leisure services staff were utilised to assist with 353 food parcel and 567 pharmacy deliveries.

From 8th June 70 Leisure staff were furloughed. Currently around 6 staff were still on the furlough scheme and these were staff who carried out work on behalf of Public Health. These staff would eventually move on to the Government's Job Support scheme.

Further to school closures, delivery of physical activity and sports development was halted. However, for the current academic year, 13 schools had agreed to take up the physical activity & sports development programme (in comparison to 18 last year). Leisure staff were working with schools to attract more on to the scheme and offer confidence around the Covid procedures Leisure had in place.

Leisure staff had kept in touch with local sports clubs offering advice and assistance where applicable and also assisted individual clubs with return to sport following government lifting of restrictions. However, community provision had ceased both in community settings and within the Go Active facility. Recently, and following guidance from the FA, community Premier League Kicks sessions had commenced in Carr Vale and there were plans for a return of the Sports SPLASH school holiday programme at the Go Active Leisure Centre in October half term.

A Member queried if outdoor activities for schools were solely being focused on and if the school holiday programme in October half term would now be impacted on due to the current surge in cases. The Leisure Operations Manager advised that Leisure staff were working with schools individually to deliver schools' own risk assessments as well as Leisure having their own risk assessments. All October sessions were proposed to be outdoors and guidance was still awaited. However, this would only be for members of the Go Active facility due to track and trace purposes.

Extreme Wheels had secured funding from 4 Community Safety Partnerships to work on an alternative delivery model assisting to disperse gatherings and to offer guidance and advice to young adults. Pleasley Vale Outdoor Activity Centre has remained closed, however, the Centre Manager had recently returned to work under the flexible furlough scheme to test the market for customers to return safely to the Centre.

The Go Active facility re-opened on 25th July with a strict booking policy in order to comply with track and trace. Maximum occupancy levels had to be reduced in order to comply with social distancing. However, another part of the gym had recently opened up

and screens were also being looked at to further increase occupancy/usage to 30 people at one time. Sanitising of all equipment, including changing room lockers etc was carried out between sessions using a mist sprayer system.

As indoor sports were not currently available, classes had been moved from the studios into the sports hall. Swimming lessons re-commenced on Monday 7th September.

Pre Covid, footfall was approximately 1000 per day. Post Covid, this was approximately 350 per day and with the introduction of the swimming lessons programme, this was now around 500 visits per day.

In the last financial year, income for Go Active was around £100k per month. The current financial situation was yet to be clarified as the majority of the facility staff were furloughed and the Government had recently announced that 75% of lost income could be claimed back.

Many positive comments had been made on social media in relation to how the leisure facilities had been organised for customer use in light of Covid. A Member noted that she had also received good feedback in relation to the cleanliness of the sports facilities and also the Community Support Team who were professional and swift when she had used them.

In response to a Member's query regarding the Go Active café, the Leisure Operations Manager advised Committee that around £12.5k per month had been lost on the closing of the café, however, this would reopen on Monday 12th October for take away service only.

A Member requested further advice from Extreme Wheels officers on how Parishes could look to re-open Parish Council owned skate parks where they existed, as advice from Skate England was that the setting need to be supervised. The Leisure Operations Manager agreed to pass on the service request.

Members requested that the Leisure Operations Manager pass on their thanks and praise to Leisure staff for their work.

Moved by Councillor David Downes and seconded by Councillor Tom Munro **RESOLVED** that the report be noted.

HEA15-20/21 CONSULTATION ON DRAFT BDC SEX ESTABLISHMENT POLICY AND PROCEDURE 2020 - 2023.

Committee considered a report which provided details of the Council's draft Sex Establishment Policy.

Members' feedback was sought on the policy and any comments would be submitted to the Council's Licensing Committee for their consideration.

Although there was no legal requirement to do so, in 2019, Licensing Committee had recommended that Council resolve to adopt the relevant legislation and have a policy which would give the Council powers to control the number, type and location of sex

establishments in its area and the manner in which such premises were run. The key aspects regarding the contents of the policy were detailed in the report. Members were asked to note that there were no sex establishments in the District at the current time.

The Council must carry out a 12 week public consultation and it was agreed that this be done prior to formal adoption of the legislation. It was also agreed to consult on the draft Policy at the same time. The outcome of the consultation would be considered by the Licensing Committee and a final version of the Policy recommended to Council for approval.

A Member queried how the consultation would be advertised and asked for this to be highlighted to Cllrs so that they could actively promote engagement with the consultation. Officers clarified it would likely be via local press, Bolsover TV, the Council website and Twitter. The consultation approach would be similar to that completed in relation to the recently reviewed Gambling Policy.

In relation to a query over how we linked to neighbouring areas, it was noted that businesses in South Yorkshire would be consulted. Officers noted that they were comparing our approach to neighbouring authorities to ensure it was a robust policy.

A Local Area Profile (LAP) would also be prepared which would map out the characteristics of the area and because the area profile could change so frequently, it was considered good practice to keep this document separate. However, this would be published at the same time as the Policy to ensure that the document was as up to date as possible.

Moved by Councillor David Downes and seconded by Councillor Natalie Hoy **RESOLVED** that the draft Sex Establishment Policy be noted.

HEA16-20/21 SCRUTINY COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME 2020/21

Committee considered their Work Programme 2020-2021.

Moved by Councillor David Downes and seconded by Councillor Tom Munro **RESOLVED** that the Work Programme be noted.

The formal part of the meeting concluded at 1045 hours and Members then met as a working party to continue their review work. The working party concluded at 11.56 hours.